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5,990,999 2.1
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( 43,808 ) 100-0
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( 26,564 ) 100.0
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2024
( ) ( )
(%)
1 4,704,343 105.75 497,489,805 97.24 457,436,244 | 97.9
2024 10
( 182 10 ) ()
HP ENTERPRISE HPE 6. 35%
i B 2045/10/15| 2.0
, | JPUORGAN CHASE JPH Float o
PERP .
EMERA INC EMACN 6. 75%
3 | chone ot 2076/6/15| 1.5
SPRINT CORP S 7..125%
4 | oers e 2024/6/15| 1.5
ALBERTSONS COS ACI 7..50%
5 | S5m0 /2000 2026/3/15| 1.4
GENERAL MOTORS C GM
6 | 6.60% 04/01/2036 2036/4/1 | 1.4
VISTRA CORP VST 8.00%
" | perp 1.3
CELANESE US HLDS CE
8 | 6.165% 07/15/2027 2027/7/15| 1.2
AMKOR TECH INC AVKR
9 | 6.625% 09/15/2027 2027/9/15| 1.2
AMGEN INC AMGN 4.875%
10 | s 2053/3/1 | 1.2
2024
2024
2023 2024
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2019 10 31 147,770,941.31 22,264,648 107.37 16,177
2020 10 31 270,736,473.62 40,791,864 107.37 16,177
2021 10 31 465,898,446.53 70,196,919 115.13 17,347
2022 10 31 324,910,674.97 48,954,291 97.82 14,739
2023 10 31 286,808,961.80 43,213,506 98.60 14,856
2023 321,647,289.93 48,462,597 101.19 15,246
321,918,839.37 48,503,512 101.67 15,319

312,818,167.56 47,132,313 100.47 15,138

314,143,532.40 47,332,006 102.16 15,392

313,610,005.51 47,251,620 103.31 15,566

306,747,529.00 46,217,650 102.52 15,447

295,643,811.20 44,544,653 100.48 15,139

10 286,808,961.80 43,213,506 98.60 14,856

11 295,980,697.18 44,595,412 103.42 15,582

12 302,100,622.34 45,517,501 107.14 16,143

2024 297,046,086.75 44,755,934 107.05 16,129
290,757,029.19 43,808,362 106.69 16,075
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2019 10 31 97,818,154.86 14,738,261 104.18 15,697
2020 10 31 177,235,749.33 26,704,110 101.12 15,236
2021 10 31 267,753,142.13 40,342,366 105.37 15,876
2022 10 31 193,938,718.92 29,220,747 86.75 13,071
2023 10 31 173,041,577.37 26,072,174 84.51 12,733
2023 189,084,237.44 28,489,322 88.48 13,331
189,245,853.45 28,513,673 88.65 13,357

185,331,979.95 27,923,969 87.35 13,161

186,853,826.18 28,153,266 88.57 13,345

187,030,501.32 28,179,886 89.31 13,456

184,480,258.14 27,795,640 88.38 13,316

177,617,745.75 26,761,666 86.37 13,013

10 173,041,577.37 26,072,174 84.51 12,733

11 178,248,865.02 26,856,756 88.39 13,318

12 182,007,097.80 27,423,009 91.30 13,756

2024 179,953,800.02 27,113,639 90.98 13,708
176,302,905.24 26,563,559 90.42 13,624
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2018 28 2019 10 3-00 452
2019 11 2020 10 3-00 452
2020 11 2021 10 3-00 452
2021 11 2022 10 3-00 452
2022 11 2023 10 3-00 452
7.37 7.18
2018 28 2019 10
0.00 -0.06
2019 11 2020 10
7.23 7.17
2020 11 2021 10
-15.04 -14.82
2021 11 2022 10
0.80 0.88
2022 11 2023 10
100x% +
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2018 2820182018 12 -5.74 -5.73
2019 20192019 12 15.40 15.22
2020 20202020 12 3.13 2.97
2021 20212021 12 3.36 3.29
2022 20222022 12 -14.13 -14.03
2023 20232023 12 7.60 7.40
2024 20242024 -0.42 -0.42
100x

2018

2024
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1,474,517 78,027 1,396,490
2018 28 1,474,517 78,027 1,396,490
2019 10 990,748 40,043 950,705
990,748 40,043 950,705

1,421,815 286,894 2,531,411

2019 11 1,421,815 286,894 2,531,411
2020 10 997,582 189,623 1,758,664
997,582 189,623 1,758,664

2,624,512 1,097,322 4,058,601

2020 11 (2,624,512) (1,097,322) (4,058,601)
2021 10 1,347,788 542,233 2,564,219

(1,347,788) (542,233) (2,564,219)

493,542 1,233,364 3,318,779

2021 11 (493,542) (1,233,364) (3,318,779)
2022 10 294,656 623,772 2,235,103

(294,656) (623,772) (2,235,103)

103,223 516,193 2,905,809

2022 11 (103,223) (516,193) (2,905,809)
2023 10 106,154 296,647 2,044,610

(106,154) (296,647) (2,044,610)
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2023 10 31
2023 2022

1 11,865,118 1,787,717 10,510,238 1,583,578
(202§2°§286)858’322’783 9,10 448,533,022 67,580,470 507,334,762 76,440,129
366,350 55,198 433,267 65,280
. - 3,000,000 452,010
460,764,490 69,423,386 521,278,267 78,540,996
851,296 128,265 2,109,908 317,900
13 508,336 90,151 618,472 93,185
1,449,632 218,416 2,728,380 411,085
459,314,858 69,204,970 518,549,887 78,129,911
USD286, 517,745 43,169,629  USD324,656,538 48,916,001
12 2,905,809 437,818 3,318,779 500,040
USD98..60 15 USD97 .82 15
USD172,797,113 26,035,341  USD193,893,349 29,213,911
12 2,044,610 308,061 2,235,103 336,763
USD84.51 13 USDS6.75 13

2024 26
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2023 10 31

2023 2022
14 (4,554,865) (686,282)  (118,111,258)  (17,795,823)
15,753,126 2,373,523 18,767,267 2,827,664
11,198,261 1,687,242 (99,343,991)  (14,968,159)
13,15 3,545,663 534,225 4,470,819 673,618
13,15 1,013,087 152,642 1,277,307 192,452
13,15 607,816 91,580 766,421 115,477
13,15 353,767 53,302 432,793 65,209
13,15 23,297 3,510 28,176 4,245
27,079 4,080 25,217 3,799
93,260 14,051 137,690 20,746
5,663,969 853,390 7,138,423 1,075,546
5,534,292 833,852 (106,482,414)  (16,043,705)
16 (6.360,634) (958,357) (7,364,810) (1,109,656)
(6,360,634) (958,357) (7.364,810) (1,109, 656)
(826,342) (124,505)  (113,847,224)  (17,153,361)
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2023

518,549,887

19,796,263
(78,204,950)

(826,342)

78,129,911

2,982,703
(11,783,140)

(124,505)
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2022

737,465,804 111,113,973

83,674,029 12,607,166
(188,742,722)  (28,437,866)

(113,847,224)  (17,153,361)

459,314,858

69,204,970

518,549,887 78,129,911
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2023 10 31

2023 2022
(826,342) (124,505)  (113,847,224)  (17,153,361)
- - (8,500,001) (1,280,695)
70,000,001 10,546,900 116,199,999 17,507,854
(1,528,240) (230, 260) 114,951,813 17,319,790
6,083,105 916,541 3,159,445 476,034
(15,753,126) (2,373,523) (18,767,267) (2,827,664)
3,000,000 452,010 (3,000, 000) (452,010)
(20,136) (3,034) (231,925) (34,944)
60,955,262 9,184,129 89,964,840 13,555,002
19,863,180 2,992,785 94,658,342 14,262,172

(79,463,562)

(11,972,775)

(189,274,238)

(28,517,949)

(59,600,382) (8,979,990) (94,615,896) (14,255,777)

1,354,880 204,140 (4,651,056) (700,775)
10,510,238 1,583,578 15,161,294 2,284,352
11,865,118 1,787,717 10,510,238 1,583,578
15,753,126 2,373,523 18,767,267 2,827,664
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2023 10 31
2023 10 31 2022 10 31
2023 2023 2022 2022
2,818,614,838 448,533,022  2,690,371,827 507,334,762
2023 10 31 2022 10 31
FVTPL
2023
USD USD USD UsD
- 11,865,118 - 11,865,118
FVTPL
448,533,022 ~ - 448,533,022
- 366,350 - 366,350
448,533,022 12,231,468 - 460,764,490
- - 851,296 851,296
- - 598,336 598,336
- - 459,314,858 459,314,858
- - 460,764,490 460,764,490
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2023 10 31
2022
- 10,510,238 - 10,510,238
FVTPL
507,334,762 - - 507,334,762
- 433,267 - 433,267
- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
507,334,762 13,943,505 - 521,278,267
- - 2,109,908 2,109,908
- - 618,472 618,472

518,549,887 518,549,887

521,278,267 521,278,267
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2023 10 31
2023
- 448,533,022 - 448,533,022
- 448,533,022 - 448,533,022
2022
- 507,334,762 - 507,334,762
- 507,334,762 - 507,334,762
2023 10 31 2022 10 31

10
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2023 10 31
10.
2023 10 31 2022 10 31
2023
11,865,118 11,865,118
366,350 366,350
12,231,468 12,231,468
851,296 851,296
598,336 598,336
1,449,632 1,449,632
2022
10,510,238 10,510,238
433,267 433,267
3,000,000 3,000,000
13,943,505 13,943,505
2,109,908 2,109,908
618,472 618,472

2,728,380 2,728,380
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10.

11

12

2023 10 31

12

2023 2022
11,865,118 10,510,238
11,865,118 10,510,238

2023 2022

3,318,779 4,058,601
103,223 493,542
(516,193) (1,233,364)
2,905,809 3,318,779
2,235,103 2,564,219
106,154 294,656
(296,647) (623,772)
2,044,610 2,235,103
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2023 10 31

2023 10 31 2022 10 31

2023 2022
275,733 278,615
78,818 79,600
47,291 47,79
27,583 27,734
4,011 4,691
25,097 24,908
139,803 155,128
598,336 618,472
0.7
0.2

0.12
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2023 10 31

0.55
2023 2022
(6,083,105) (3,159, 445)
1,528,240 (114,951,813)

(4,554,865) (118,111,258)
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 October 2023
2023 2022

Notes USD UsD
Assets
Cash 11 11,865,118 10,510,238
Investment in Selected Fund (Cost: 2023:
USD525, 689,783, 2022: USD586,019,764) 9,10 448,533,022 507,334,762
Subscriptions receivable 366,350 433,267
Receivable from Selected Fund - 3,000,000
Total Assets 460,764,490 521,278,267
Liabilities
Repurchases payable 851,296 2,109,908
Other payables 13 598,336 618,472
Total Liabilities 1,449,632 2,728,380
Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable 459,314,858 518,549,887

participating units

Representing:
Capital Growth Type Units

Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable

participating units UsD286,517,745  USD324,656,538

Number of redeemable participating units outstanding 12 2,905,809 3,318,779
Net asset value (““NAV~~) per redeemable participating USD98..60 USD97.82
unit ) ’

Monthly Distribution Type Units

Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
participating units

Number of redeemable participating units outstanding 12 2,044,610 2,235,103
NAV per redeemable participating unit USD84.51 USD86.75

usb172,797,113  USD193,893,349

Approved on behal f of the Trustee on 26 February 2024

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 October 2023

2023 2022

Notes USD USD
Net income/(loss) from financial instruments at fair
value through profitor loss
Net loss on investments 14 (4,554,865) (118,111,258)
Dividend income 15,753,126 18,767,267
Net investment income/(loss) 11,198,261 (99,343,991)
Distribution fees 13,15 3,545,663 4,470,819
Investment Manager fees 13,15 1,013,087 1,277,307
Fee Agent fees 13,15 607,816 766,421
Administration fees 13,15 353,767 432,793
Custody fees 13,15 23,297 28,176
Audit fees 27,079 25,217
Other fees and expenses 93,260 137,690
Total operating expenses 5,663,969 7,138,423
Operating profit/(loss) 5,534,292 (106,482,414)
Finance Costs
Brﬁglbutlons to the holder of redeemable participating 16 (6,360,634) (7,364,810)
Total Finance Costs (6,360,634) (7,364,810)

Change in net assets attributable to the holder of

redeemable participating units (826,342) (113,847,224)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to the Holder of Redeemable Participating
Units
For the year ended 31 October 2023

2023 2022
usD UsD

Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
participating units at start of year 518,549,887 737,465,804
Issue of redeemable participating units 19,796,263 83,674,029
Repurchase of redeemable participating units (78,204,950) (188,742,722)

Change in net assets attributable to the holder of

redeemable participating units (826,342) (113,847, 224)

Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable

participating units at end of year 459,314,858 518,549,887

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 October 2023

Operating activities

Change in net assets attributable to the holder of
redeemable participating units

Purchase of investment in Selected Fund
Sale of investment in Selected Fund

Adjustment for items not involving cash

Movement in unrealised (gain)/loss on financial assets
at fair value through profitor loss

Net realised loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Dividend income*

Net change in non-cash operating balances
Decrease/(increase) in receivable from Selected Fund
Decrease in other payables

Net cash provided by operating activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating units

Payments for repurchase of redeemable participating
units

Net cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash
Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

Supplementary information:

Dividends re-invested*

2023
usD

(826,342)

70,000,001

(1,528,240)

6,083,105
(15,753,126)

2022
uSsD

(113,847,224)

(8,500,001)
116,199,999

114,951,813

3,159,445
(18,767,267)

3,000,000 (3,000,000)

(20,136) (231,925)
60,955,262 89,964,840
19,863,180 94,658,342

(79,463,562)

(189,274,238)

(59,600,382)

(94,615,896)

1,354,880 (4,651,056)
10,510,238 15,161,294
11,865,118 10,510,238
15,753,126 18,767,267

*Dividend income from the Selected Fund is not received as cash but is instead reinvested in the same

class of units in the Selected Fund.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I1I

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Meister s Collection (For Qualified Institutional Investors only) (the ““Series Trust””) has
been created and established pursuant to the Master Trust Deed for Credit Suisse Universal Trust
(Cayman) 111 (the ““Master Trust””) dated 2 December 2013 and a Supplemental Trust Deed dated 3
August 2018 (the ““Supplement Trust Deed”” and, together with the Master Trust Deed, the ““Trust
Deed””). The Master Trust is an exempted unit trust registered under Section 47 of the Trust Act
of the Cayman Islands on 2 December 2013 and registered under the Mutual Funds Act of the Cayman
Islands on 22 January 2014.

The Series Trust commenced trading on 28 September 2018 issuing Capital Growth Type Units and
Monthly Distribution Type Units, respectively.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to provide investors with the option of receiving
either current income or capital appreciation by indirectly investing under normal market
conditions mainly in income-producing debt and equity securities including, but not limited to,
corporate bonds, convertible bonds, common stocks and preferred stocks. It is expected that the
Series Trust will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing substantially all of the
assets of the Series Trust into the USD Distribution Class Units of Nuveen NWQ Flexible Income
Fund (the ““Selected Fund”?). The Selected Fund is a series trust of Global Multi Strategy, an
umbrella unit trust established under the laws of the Cayman Islands (the ““Umbrella Trust””). At
31 October 2023, the Series Trust had a 15.91% (2022: 18.86%) holding in the Selected Fund.

The Series Trust may also hold USD cash and money market securities (including but not limited to
commercial paper, certificates of deposit and government bills).

Sumitomo Mitsui DS Asset Management Company, Limited (the ““Investment Manager””) shall have day-
to-day investment decision-making and ongoing monitoring responsibility over the portion of the
Series Trust ”s portfolio comprising the Selected Fund and USD cash and money market securities
(the ““Subadvised Portfolio””).

The Subadvised Portfolio may generate a certain amount of income each month. It is intended that
the portion of such income that is attributable to the Monthly Distribution Type Units will be
distributed to the holder of such class of Units on each distribution date, as further described
in Note 16.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The investment objective of the Selected Fund is to seek to provide a high level of income and
attractive risk-adjusted returns by investing in corporate securities across the capital
structure based on the investment manager of the Selected Fund, Nuveen Asset Management, LLC (the
““SF Investment Manager””) assessment of relative value and risk. The base currency of the
Selected Fund is USD.

In order to pursue its investment objective, the SF Investment Manager employs a rigorous
research-focused investment process that seeks to identify undervalued companies with positive
risk/reward characteristics in selecting investments for the Selected Fund.

The SF Investment Manager s approach to investing is based upon a bottom-up, fundamental
approach. The team conducts independent research focused on understanding individual companies as
businesses rather than viewing them simply as stocks. Part of the methodology includes rigorous
financial statement evaluation, focusing on balance sheet and cash flow statement analysis above
solely relying upon the income statement, a process they believe allows for a true understating
of a company s economic profitability, cash flow and return on capital.

The SF Investment Manager s investment process focuses on the attractiveness of a particular
security within a company ”s capital structure and seeks to invest in securities that it feels
possess the appropriate balance between risk and reward and that represent good value when
compared to other similar securities. The SF Investment Manager may choose to sell securities or
reduce its exposure to a security, including through the use of the financial derivative
instruments described below, if it feels that a company no longer possesses favorable risk/reward
characteristics, attractive valuations or catalysts, if it identifies better alternatives within
a company s capital structure, or if a company suspends or is projected to suspend its dividend
or interest payments.

The SF Investment Manager will invest for the account of the Selected Fund in a diversified
portfolio of investments including, but not limited to, debt and equity securities of US or non-
US companies. The debt securities in which the SF Investment Manager invests, for the account of
the Selected Fund, may invest include, but are not limited to, corporate bonds, mortgage-backed
securities, taxable municipal securities, and US Government and agency debt securities. Preferred
securities are securities issued by corporate issuers that generally pay fixed or adjustable rate
distributions to investors and have preference over common shares in the payment of distributions
and the liquidation of a company ”s assets, but are junior to most other forms of a company ”s
debt, including both senior and subordinated debt.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The SF Investment Manager, for the account of the Selected Fund, may invest without limit in
preferred securities and debt securities that are rated lower than investment grade at the time
of purchase or in unrated securities of comparable quality. These securities may also be referred
to as sub-investment grade securities and generally provide high income in an effort to
compensate investors for their higher risk of default, which is the failure to make required
interest or principal payments. Accordingly, the NAV of the Selected Fund may have a relatively
high level of volatility.

There is no limitation on the average maturity or average effective duration of the securities
held by the Selected Fund.

Normally, the SF Investment Manager, for the account of the Selected Fund, will invest
substantially all of the Selected Fund ”s assets to meet its investment objective. To the extent
that the Selected Fund = s assets are not fully invested in accordance with its investment
objective, the SF Investment Manager s investment decisions may be made on the basis of short-
term market considerations in which case the SF Investment Manager, for the account of the
Selected Fund, may engage in frequent trading of portfolio securities. For temporary defensive
purposes, including during periods of high cash inflows and outflows, the SF Investment Manager
may temporarily deviate from the investment policies and restrictions of the Selected Fund.
During such periods, the Selected Fund may not achieve its investment objective.

On 6 December 2021, Corporation Services Company (““CSC””) announced that a conditional agreement
had been reached on a recommended public offer for all issued and outstanding ordinary shares of

Intertrust Group of which the Trustee is a wholly owned subsidiary. In November 2022, CSC closed

on its acquisition of Intertrust Group.

On 19 March 2023, UBS Group AG (““UBS”~) agreed to acquire Credit Suisse Group AG (““Credit
Suisse””) following intervention by the Swiss Federal Department of Finance, the Swiss National
Bank and the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA). On 12 June 2023, UBS completed
the takeover of Credit Suisse. The Series Trust has no exposure of the NAV related to investments
in financial assets from Credit Suisse International.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (““IFRS””) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (““l1ASB””), and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee of the
1ASB.

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (““USD””) and not the local
currency of the Cayman Islands. The units of the Series Trust are issued and redeemed in Japanese
Yen (““JPY”?) but the Series Trust s operations are primarily conducted in USD.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12, and IAS 27)
(2012) (the ““amendments”~). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of
an investment entity.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Trustee to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about the
carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised. Judgements made by the Trustee in the application of IFRS that have a
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in Notes 9 and 10.
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A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
material items:

Items Measurement basis

Financial assets at fair value through profit or Fair value
loss (““FVTPL??)

Investment in Selected Fund is included in this category.

4. CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

5. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2023 and
earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early applied these new or

amended standards in preparing these financial statements.

Of those standards that are not yet effective, none is expected to have a material impact on the
Series Trust ”s financial statements in the period of initial application.

6. NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
New standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective for the financial year
beginning 1 November 2022

A number of amendments to IFRS are effective for the current financial year, but they do not have
a material effect on the Series Trust ”s financial statements.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Series Trust and consistently applied to all
periods presented in these financial statements are as follows:

Financial assets and financial liabilities

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

The Series Trust initially recognises financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL on the
trade date, which is the date on which the Series Trust becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the date on which they are originated.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item
not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Classification of financial assets

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortised
cost or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:
e it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and
e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (““SPP1”7).

All other financial assets of the Series Trust are measured at FVTPL.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Business model assessment

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is

held, the Series Trust considers all of the relevant information about how the business is
managed, including:

the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This
includes whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust”s
management ;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

how the Investment Manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for

derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust”s

continuing recognition of the assets.

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash, subscriptions receivable and
receivable from Selected Fund. These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash
flow.

Other business model: this includes investment in Selected Fund. These financial assets
are managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales
taking place.

133/240



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are SPPI

For the purposes of this assessment, ““principal”” is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. ““Interest”” is defined as consideration for the time value of
money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Series Trust considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

— leverage features;

— prepayment and extension features;

— terms that limit the Series Trust~s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features); and

— features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of
interest rates).

For a reconciliation of line items in the Statement of Financial Position to the categories of
financial instruments, as defined by IFRS 9, see Note 8.

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Series
Trust were to change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected
financial assets would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following
the change in the business model.
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A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income and expense and foreign exchange gains and losses, are recognised in
profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Investment in Selected Fund is included in this category.

The fair value of the investment in the Selected Fund is based on the unaudited NAV per unit
obtained from the Selected Fund ”s administrators, which has been assessed as the most
representative measure of fair value as determined by the Investment Manager. Realised and
unrealised gains or losses on the investment in the Selected Fund are included in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Cash, subscriptions receivable and receivable from Selected Fund are included in this category.

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a
derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised
in profit or loss.
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A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses (continued)

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

As at the years ended 31 October 2023 and 2022, there were no financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost include repurchases payable and other payables.

(iii) Fair value measurement

““Fair value”” is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the
principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Series Trust has access
at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price
in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the
asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information
on an ongoing basis. The Series Trust measures instruments quoted in an active market at a mid-
price, because this price provides a reasonable approximation of the exit price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Series Trust uses valuation techniques
that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs.
The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would
take into account in pricing a transaction.

The Series Trust recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred.
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A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(iv) Amortised cost measurement

The ““amortised cost”” of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the
financial asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets,
adjusted for any loss allowance.

(v) Impairment
The Series Trust recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (““ECLs””) on financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

The Series Trust measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

e Tinancial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
e other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the asset) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Series Trust considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both guantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Series Trust~s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Series Trust assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if
it is more than 30 days past due.
The Series Trust considers a financial asset to be in default when:

e the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Series Trust in full,
without recourse by the Series Trust to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or

e the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(v) Impairment (continued)

The Series Trust considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the credit rating of

the counterparty is equivalent to the globally understood definition of ““investment grade””.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events
that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Series Trust is exposed to
credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Series Trust in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Series Trust expects to
receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Series Trust assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ““credit-impaired”” when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; or
e it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(v) Impairment (continued)

Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the Statement of Financial Position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Series Trust has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

(vi) Derecognition

The Series Trust derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Series Trust neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
(or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset that is derecognised) and the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest in such transferred financial assets that is created
or retained by the Series Trust is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Series Trust may enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its
Statement of Financial Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised. Transfers of assets
with retention of all or substantially all of the risks and rewards include sale and repurchase
transactions.

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(vi) Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

(vii) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
Statement of Financial Position when and only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. This is generally not the case with master netting
agreements and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the Statement of
Financial Position. As at 31 October 2023 and 2022, the Series Trust does not hold any financial
assets or liabilities subject to master netting arrangements.

Cash

Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited as Trustee have appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
(London Branch) as its custodian (the ““Custodian””). The Custodian has, in turn, appointed Brown
Brothers Harriman & Co. (““BBH””) as their sub-custodian (the ““Sub-Custodian®”). Cash is
ultimately held at BBH as the Series Trust ™s banker. Cash comprises of cash held with maturities
of 3 months or less with BBH.

Net income/(loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL

Dividend income is recorded gross of any non-reclaimable withholding taxes suffered on an ex-
dividend date basis. Dividend income from the Selected Fund is not received as cash but is
instead reinvested in the same class of units in the Selected Fund.

The realised loss from financial instruments at FVTPL represents the difference between the
carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the reporting period, or the
transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period, and the consideration
received on disposal. Realised gains or losses on sale of investments are calculated using the
FIFO method. The unrealised gain/(loss) represents the difference between the carrying amount of
a Financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price if it was
purchased in the current reporting period, and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting
period.

140/240



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign exchange transactions

Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into USD amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and sales of securities, issue and
redemption of redeemable participating units and income and expense items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into USD amounts on the respective dates of such transactions.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Taxation

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital
gains or other Cayman Islands taxes payable by the Master Trust. The Master Trust has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands that it will be exempt from such
taxes for a period of fifty years from 2 December 2013 should they be enacted. As a result, no
provision for taxes has been made in the financial statements. The Series Trust may be subject to
foreign withholding taxes on certain interest, dividends and capital gains.

Foreign currencies

Items which are included in the Series Trust s financial statements, are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates (the ““functional currency’”),
which is USD. Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into USD amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and sales of investments, issue
and repurchase of redeemable participating units and income and expense items denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into USD amounts on the respective dates of such transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into USD at the
exchange rates ruling at the year end date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies which are stated at fair value, are translated into USD, at the date the fair
value was determined. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from translation, if any,
are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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31 October 2023
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Redeemable Participating Units

The Redeemable Participating Units sold by the Series Trust are puttable instruments and are
classified as financial liabilities as they do not meet the conditions for equity classification
under the amendments to IAS 32, as there were different classes of Units with different features
in issue throughout the year (Note 12). The NAV per Unit is calculated by dividing the total Net
Assets of the Series Trust attributable to each Unit class by the number of Units in issue in
each respective class. All Units are issued and redeemed at this price.

Interest in another entity

Interest in another entity is defined for the purpose of IFRS 12 as contractual or non-
contractual involvement that exposes an entity to variability of returns from the performance of
the other entity. It can be evidenced by holding of equity or debt instruments, but also
liquidity support, credit enhancement and guarantees.

The Series Trust has concluded that the unlisted open-ended investment fund in which it invests,
but that it does not consolidate, meets the definition of a structured entity because:

the voting rights in the Selected Fund are not dominant rights in deciding who controls
them because the rights relate to administrative tasks only;

the Selected Fund s activities are restricted by its offering documents and applicable
appendix; and

the Selected Fund has narrow and well-defined objectives to provide investment
opportunities to investors.
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(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest in another entity (continued)

The table below describes the type of structured entity that the Series Trust does not
consolidate but in which it holds an interest:

Type of Nature and purpose Interest held by the

structured entity Series Trust

Investment Fund To provide a high level of income and Investments in units
attractive risk-adjusted return by investing issued by the Selected
in corporate securities across the capital Fund

structure based on the Manager s assessment
of relative value and risk.

The table below sets out interests held by the Series Trust in unconsolidated structured
entities. The maximum exposure to loss is the carrying amounts of the financial assets held at 31
October 2023 and 2022.

Total net Carrying Total net Carrying
assets amount at assets amount at
(unaudited) FVTPL (unaudited) FVTPL
2023 2023 2022 2022
usD usD usD usD
Nuveen NWQ Flexible Income
Fund 2,818,614,838 448,533,022  2,690,371,827 507,334,762

During the years ended 31 October 2023 and 2022, the Series Trust did not provide additional
financial support to unconsolidated structured entities and has no current obligation to or
intention of providing other financial or other support.
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8. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial
Financial liabilities
assets at at
Mandatorily amortised amortised
2023 at FVTPL cost cost Total
usb usb Usb usb
Cash - 11,865,118 - 11,865,118
Financial assets at 448,533,022 - - 448,533,022
FVTPL
Subscriptions - 366,350 - 366,350
receivable
448,533,022 12,231,468 - 460,764,490
Repurchases payable - - 851,296 851,296
Other payables - - 598,336 598,336
Net assets attributable 459,314,858 459,314,858

to the holder of
redeemable participating
units - -

- - 460,764,490 460,764,490
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(continued)

8. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Financial
Financial liabilities
assets at at

Mandatorily amortised amortised

2022 at FVTPL cost cost Total
usb usb Usb usb

Cash - 10,510,238 - 10,510,238
Financial assets at
FVTPL 507,334,762 - - 507,334,762
Subscriptions
receivable - 433,267 - 433,267
Receivable from
Selected Fund - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000

507,334,762 13,943,505 - 521,278,267
Repurchases payable - - 2,109,908 2,109,908
Other payables - - 618,472 618,472
Net assets attributable
to the holder of
redeemable
participating units - - 518,549,887 518,549,887

- - 521,278,267 521,278,267
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9. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The table below shows financial instruments recognised at fair value analysed between those whose

fair value is based on:

Level 1: Quoted price (Unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument;

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using:
quoted prices in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation
techniques for which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data; and

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category
includes all instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on
observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument”s
valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are
required to reflect differences between the instruments. The Series Trust did not hold any
instruments in this category.

2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
uUsD uUsD uUsb usD

Financial assets at FVTPL
Investment in Selected 448,533,022 448,533,022
Fund - -

- 448,533,022 - 448,533,022
2022
Financial assets at FVTPL
Investment in Selected 507,334,762 507,334,762
Fund - -

- 507,334,762 - 507,334,762

There were no transfers across the three levels during the years ended 31 October 2023 or 2022
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(continued)

9. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial instruments not measured at FVTPL

The financial instruments not measured at FVTPL include:

Cash, subscriptions receivable, receivable from Selected Fund, repurchases payable and other
payables. These are short-term financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying amounts
approximate fair value, because of their short-term nature.

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

The main risks arising from the Series Trust”s financial instruments can be summarised as
follows:

Market Risk

Market risk arises from uncertainty about future prices of financial investments held. It
represents the potential loss the Series Trust might suffer through holding market positions in
the face of price movements. Market risk comprises three types of risk: price risk, currency risk
and interest rate risk.

In order to pursue the Series Trust s investment objective, the Manager has committed to
employing a rigorous research-focused investment process that seeks to identify undervalued
companies with positive risk/reward characteristics.

The Series Trust will invest, together with other investors, all, or substantially all of its
assets through a ““master-feeder”” structure in the Selected Fund. A ““master-feeder”” structure,
in particular the existence of multiple investment vehicles investing in the same portfolio,
presents certain unique risks to investors. Smaller investment vehicles investing in the Selected
Fund may be materially affected by the actions of larger investment vehicles investing in the
Selected Fund. For example, if a larger investment vehicle withdraws from the Selected Fund, the
remaining funds may experience higher pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing lower
returns. Substantial withdrawals of capital by investors in the Selected Fund, including the
Series Trust and any other investors, over a short time period could necessitate the liquidation
of investment positions at a time and in a manner which does not provide the most economic
advantage to the Selected Fund and which therefore could adversely affect the NAV of the Selected
Fund and hence the NAV of the Series Trust.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Market Risk (continued)

The Investment Manager will invest substantially all of the assets of the Series Trust in the
Selected Fund. The Series Trust will be required to comply with the terms of the Selected Fund ” s
offering memoranda and constitutive documents, which may place limits on subscriptions and
repurchases, and additionally the liquidation of the Selected Fund would lead to the compulsory
repurchase of any Units held for the account of the Series Trust which may, in some cases, lead
to compulsory repurchases of Units. Accordingly, the performance of the Series Trust may not
absolutely reflect the performance of the Selected Fund.

The price of the units of the Selected Fund may fall as well as rise. There can be no assurance
that the Selected Fund will achieve its investment objective or that an investor will recover the
full amount invested in the Selected Fund. Restrictions on investments in certain jurisdictions
may limit the liquidity of the Selected Fund ”s investments. The capital return and income of the
Selected Fund is based on the capital appreciation and income on the investments it holds, less
expenses incurred. Therefore, the Selected Fund ”s return may be expected to fluctuate in
response to changes in such capital appreciation or income. An investment in the Selected Fund
should be viewed by an investor as a medium to long term investment.

The Selected Fund is subject to market risk. Market risk is the risk that a particular Unit, a
fund, an industry, or securities in general may fall in value. The value of investments in the
Selected Fund will go up and down with the prices of securities in which the Selected Fund
invest. The prices of securities change in response to many factors, including the historical and
prospective earnings of the issuer, the value of its assets, management decisions, demand for an
issuer *s products or services, production costs, general economic conditions, interest rates,
currency exchange rates, investor perceptions, geopolitical factors and market liquidity.

Normally, the Manager, for the account of the Selected Fund, will invest substantially all of its
assets to meet its investment objective. To the extent that the Selected Fund ™ s assets are not
fully invested in accordance with the investment objective, the Manager s investment decisions
may be made on the basis of short-term market considerations in which case the Manager, for the
account of the Selected Fund, may engage in frequent trading of portfolio securities.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Market Risk (continued)

The following table approximates the concentration of the investment assets, excluding
derivatives, held by the Selected Fund:
% of Net Assets of
the
Selected Fund

Equities/Preferred securities 16.5
Corporate bonds 60.7
Variable rate bonds 18.7

For the Selected Fund, the investments are primarily concentrated in the United States of
America in diverse industries.

Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that value of the related instruments will fluctuate as a result of
changes in the market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk),
whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, or its issuer. The Series Trust
is susceptible to price risk that occurs at the Selected Fund, which may include substantial
risks as a result of trading by the Selected Fund of equity securities, derivative instruments,
options and futures, including securities denominated in different currencies while executing
their investment strategy. As the Selected Fund s investments in securities, futures contracts
and swap are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, all changes in market conditions will directly affect the Net Assets
attributable to the Series Trust.

As at 31 October 2023, if the price of the Investment in Selected Fund had increased by 5% with
all other variables held constant, there would have been an increase in Net Assets of
UsD22,426,651 (2022: USD25,366,738 ). A decrease by 5% with all other variables held constant,
would result in an equal but opposite effect on Net Assets to the figure shown above.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Market Risk (continued)
Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that as certain assets of the Series Trust may be invested in
securities and other investments denominated in foreign currencies, the value of such assets may
be affected favourably or unfavourably by fluctuations in currency rates. Although the Series
Trust s investments are USD denominated, the Series Trust indirectly bears currency risk on the
investment held in the Selected Fund. The Investment Manager will monitor the portfolio of the
Selected Fund.

The class of units held by the Series Trust in the Selected Fund is USD denominated. This
presents certain risks relating to currency conversion if an investor s financial activities are
denominated principally in a currency or currency unit (including JPY) (the ““Investor ”s
Currency””) other than USD. These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly change
(including changes due to devaluation of USD or revaluation of the Investor s Currency) and the
risk that authorities with jurisdiction over USD or the Investor s Currency, as the case may be,
may impose or modify exchange controls. An increase in the value of the Investor s Currency
against USD would decrease (a) the Investor ”s Currency equivalent value of the NAV of the
Selected Fund and NAV of the Selected Fund per unit and (b) the Investor s Currency equivalent
value of the distributions payable (if any).

Some of the assets of the Selected Fund may be invested in other currencies and any income
received by the Selected Fund from these investments will be received in those currencies, some
of which may fall in value against the functional currency of the Selected Fund. In addition, the
Selected Fund may invest directly in currency deposits or forward contracts or equivalent
derivatives, in some cases for hedging purposes.

All the financial assets of the Series Trust, are denominated in USD with the effect that the

Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income will not be significantly
affected by currency movements and, as a result, a sensitivity analysis has not been performed.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust might suffer due to

adverse movements in relevant interest rates. Except for cash, which is subject to a floating
interest rate and matures in less than 3 months, the majority of the Series Trust s other
financial assets and financial liabilities are non-interest bearing. As a result, the Series
Trust is subject to limited exposure to fair value interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates. However, the Series Trust is exposed to higher levels
of interest rate risk through its investment in the Selected Fund.

Interest rate risk at the Selected Fund level is the risk that the value of the Selected Fund ~s
portfolio may decline during periods of rising interest rates. When interest rates change, the
values of longer-duration debt securities are usually subject to greater change than the values
of shorter-duration debt securities. The Selected Fund may be subject to a greater risk of rising
interest rates than would have been the case in past periods due to the recent environment of
near historically low rates, including negative interest rates, and the effect of potential
government fiscal policy initiatives and resulting market reaction to those initiatives. Due to
the Selected Fund s investment strategy, assets held by the Selected Fund would see fluctuation
based on changes to the market interest rates.

As at 31 October 2023 and 2022, all the Series Trust”s assets except for cash and liabilities
were non-interest bearing.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Series Trust may not be able to settle or meet its
obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Series Trust is exposed to daily cash
repurchases of Redeemable Participating Units, which can be redeemed at the holder s option
based on the Series Trust s NAV per Redeemable Participating Unit at the time of the repurchase.
There are no repurchase restrictions on units of the Series Trust, other than in the limited
circumstances specified in the documentation. The Manager may borrow monies, for the account of
the Series Trust, provided that it will not result in an aggregate outstanding amount of
borrowing in excess of 10% of the NAV.

Redeemable Participating Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of the unitholder of
the Series Trust as at each business day and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from
time to time determine (the ““Repurchase Day”?”).

Per the policies of the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is able to redeem their investment in the
Selected Fund on any Repurchase Day (as defined above). As the repurchase policies of both the
Series Trust and Selected Fund are aligned, there is minimal impact on the Series Trust~s
liquidity risk. The Selected Fund ™ s securities are considered by the SF Investment Manager to be
readily liquid. The Selected Fund s liquidity risk is managed on a daily basis by the SF
Investment Manager in accordance with policies and procedures in place.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

The tables below analyses the Series Trust s financial assets and liabilities by contractual

maturity as at 31 October 2023 and 2022:

2023 Less than

1 month Total
Assets usD usD
Cash 11,865,118 11,865,118
Subscriptions receivable 366,350 366,350
Total Financial Assets 12,231,468 12,231,468
Liabilities
Repurchases payable 851,296 851,296
Other payables 598,336 598,336
Total Financial Liabilities 1,449,632 1,449,632
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

Less than

2022 1 month Total
Assets uUsD usb
Cash 10,510,238 10,510,238
Subscriptions receivable 433,267 433,267
Receivable from Selected Fund 3,000,000 3,000,000
Total Financial Assets 13,943,505 13,943,505
Liabilities

Repurchases payable 2,109,908 2,109,908
Other payables 618,472 618,472
Total Financial Liabilities 2,728,380 2,728,380
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Series Trust. The Series Trust is
exposed to the credit risk of the Selected Fund.

Both the cash and securities are ultimately held at the Sub-Custodian, with cash being held at
the Sub-Custodian as banker. All of the cash of the Series Trust are held by the Sub-Custodian at
year end. The Sub-Custodian has a S&P Global credit rating of A+ (2022: A+). The Custodian (which
is responsible for both the Series Trust and Selected Fund) has a S&P Global credit rating of A
(2022: A). Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Sub-Custodian may cause the Series Trust”s rights
with respect to its investments in debt securities held by the bank to be delayed or limited.

The Portfolio Managers of the SF Investment Manager continuously monitor the credit
worthiness/risk of the Selected Fund s investments.

The assets held for the account of the Selected Fund are subject to risks resulting from changes
in the creditworthiness of the underlying investments of the Selected Fund or the issuer of such
investments. This could lead to greater volatility in the prices of the security and in units of
the Selected Fund. For example, an issuer of a bond might not be able to meet its obligation to
make interest and principal payments, or bond investors as a whole may downgrade their view of
the issuer resulting in a deterioration of the price of the issuer s debt. In addition, credit
opinions from credit rating agencies may weigh on the credit spreads of the investments made for
the account of the Selected Fund.

Other Risks

On 24 February 2022, Russia launched a military invasion into Ukraine. Russia™s invasion of
Ukraine carries significant risks for a world economy. The ultimate impact on the Series Trust of
the consequential geo-political instability, financial market volatility, inflation and
imposition of sanctions on Russia, and of an environment of rising interest rates are not
possible to forecast at this time.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Amounts arising from ECL
Impairment on cash, interest, dividends and other receivables has been measured on a 12-month
expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Series Trust
considers that these exposures have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the

counterparties.
11. CASH
2023 2022
usD usD
Cash 11,865,118 10,510,238
11,865,118 10,510,238

12. NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDER OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS

The Series Trust has two classes of units: Capital Growth Type Units and Monthly Distribution

Type Units.
2023 2022

Capital Growth Type Units

Number of units outstanding as at start of year 3,318,779 4,058,601
Number of units issued 103,223 493,542
Number of units redeemed (516,193) (1,233,364)
Number of units outstanding as at end of year 2,905,809 3,318,779
Monthly Distribution Type Units

Number of units outstanding as at start of year 2,235,103 2,564,219
Number of units issued 106,154 294,656
Number of units redeemed (296,647) (623,772)

Number of units outstanding as at end of year 2,044,610 2,235,103
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12. NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDER OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS (continued)

From and including the initial closing day, units of each class of units will be available for
subscription by investors at a price equal to the NAV per Unit of the applicable class of units
on each dealing day, subject to the minimum subscription. The NAV per Unit for each class of
Units will be calculated as at the relevant dealing day (or if that dealing day is not also a
valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day). The minimum subscription amount is 1 unit
and thereafter subscriptions may be made in 1 unit increments. The aggregate subscription amounts
will be rounded naturally to the nearest two decimal places with 0.005 being rounded up. There
will be no subscription fee payable.

Investors may subscribe for units of a class of units during the initial offer period by sending

a completed application form to the Administrator by no later than 5.00 p.m. (Tokyo time) on the

last day of the initial offer period or by such other times and/or days as the Manager may in its
sole discretion determine.

The subscription monies must be remitted in full by telegraphic transfer from an account in the
name of the applicant for the account of the Series Trust for a cash settlement date on or before
the date falling one business day after the initial closing day. Payment must be made in USD. No
third party payments will be accepted. Incomplete application forms may, in the discretion of the
Manager, be held over to the first dealing day following receipt of a completed application form
and units will then be issued at the relevant NAV per Unit on such dealing day.

Investors may make a repurchase request to the Administrator on each dealing day which is also a
day on which no Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or such other day or days as the Manager
may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust in respect of Units of a class of
Units for which subscription proceeds have been received by the Administrator. The repurchase
notice once served is irrevocable, unless the Manager, after consultation with the Trustee,
determines otherwise. The repurchase price per unit of a class of units will be calculated as the
NAV per unit of such class of units as at the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day
is not also a valuation day then on the immediately preceding valuation day). The Manager may, in
its sole discretion, hold over any repurchase notice received after the repurchase notice
deadline until the next following Repurchase Day and repurchase the relevant units at the
relevant repurchase price applicable to such class of units on that Repurchase Day.
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13. FEES AND EXPENSES

The Series Trust~s fees payable as at 31 October 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

2023 2022

usb usb

Distribution fees 275,733 278,615
Investment Manager fees 78,818 79,600
Fee Agent fees 47,291 47,796
Administration fees 27,583 27,734
Custody fees 4,011 4,691
Audit fees 25,097 24,908
Other fees and expenses 139,803 155,128

598,336 618,472

Distribution Fees
The Distributor receives out of the Series Trust, a fee on a monthly basis at the rate of 0.7%
per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

Investment Manager Fees
The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly in
arrears at the rate of 0.2% per annum of the NAV.

Fee Agent Fees
The Fee Agent receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly in arrears
at the rate of 0.12% per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

The Fee Agent is responsible for payment of the Trustee and Manager fees. The Fee Agent will also
cover all costs and expenses pertaining to the Trustee and Manager fees including sundry
expenses.

The Trustee receives a fixed annual fee of USD10,000 per annum payable annually in advance out of
the Fee Agent Fees. The Trustee is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the Fee Agent Fees for
all out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.
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13. FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

Fee Agent Fees(continued)

The Manager receives out of the Fee Agent Fees a management fee of USD5,000 per annum payable
monthly in arrears.

Administration Fees

The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a monthly fee of 0.07% per
annum of the NAV on the first USD500 million, 0.06% per annum of the NAV on the next USD500
million and 0.05% per annum of the NAV after USD1,000 million.

All of the Administrator ™s fees are subject to additions in relation to value added tax (if
any). In addition, the Trustee pays, out of the assets of the Series Trust, the Administrator ”s
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses for photocopying, fax, telephone, printing, courier, postage
and other communications charges, as well as for any banking costs and the fees or charges of any
government or official department, body or organisation, and any other similar expenses, costs,
fees or charges paid by the Administrator on behalf of the Series Trust in connection with the
performance of its services for the Series Trust.

Custody Fees
The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable monthly in arrears at
the rate of 0.025% per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

The Custodian also receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, any other fees agreed between
the relevant parties and is reimbursed out of the assets of the Series Trust for all out-of-
pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.

Fees of the Selected Fund

As the Series Trust intends to invest substantially all of its assets in the Selected Fund, the
Series Trust will indirectly bear the costs and fees applicable to the Selected Fund. These fees
will reduce the NAV attributable to holders of redeemable participating units of the Selected
Fund, which will affect the value of the Investment in Selected Fund presented in the Statement
of Financial Position of the Series Trust. The total fees of the Selected Fund are approximately
0.55% of the assets under management of the Selected Fund per annum subject to change of certain
fixed fees. More details regarding the breakdown of specific fees paid within the Selected Fund
are available in the Offering Documents of the Series Trust.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

14. NET LOSS ON INVESTMENTS

2023 2022

usD usD
Net loss on investments consists of the following
Net realised loss on financial assets at FVTPL (6,083,105) (3,159,445)
Movement in unrealised gain/(loss) on financial assets at

1,528,240  (114,951,813)
FVTPL
Net loss on investments (4,554,865) (118,111,258)

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The
Trustee, Manager, Investment Manager, Fee Agent, Administrator, Custodian and Distributor are
deemed to be related parties of the Series Trust. The Trustee is a related party by virtue of its
power to create the Series Trust under the Deed of Establishment. The Manager is a related party
by virtue of its power to issue units under the Deed of Establishment and by virtue of common
ownership by the ultimate parent company, Credit Suisse Group AG. The Investment Manager is a
related parties by virtue of their power to make investment decisions. The Fee Agent is a related
party by virtue of its ability to exercise significant influence as it provides calculation
agency services to the Series Trust. The Fee Agent information is detailed in Note 13. The
Distributor, Administrator and Custodian are related parties by virtue of their affiliation with
the Investment Manager. There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the
normal course of business. Fees incurred with related parties during the year are disclosed in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and discussed in Note 13. Amounts charged by and payable to
related parties as at 31 October 2023 and 2022 are disclosed in Note 13.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

16. DISTRIBUTIONS

The Series Trust may generate a certain amount of income each month. The current distribution
policy of the Series Trust is:

(i in respect of the Capital Growth Type Units, to pay no distribution; and

(i1 in respect of the Monthly Distribution Type Units, pay to the holder of such class of
Units a monthly distribution (a ““Monthly Distribution””) in respect of each distribution
date paid out of the investment principal (a realisation of units in the Selected Fund)
which may also be in excess of any capital gain and attributable to the Monthly
Distribution Type Units in respect of the corresponding distribution period.

The amount of distribution to be paid in respect of each distribution date shall be determined by
the Manager in its sole discretion taking into account (1) realised and unrealised capital gains
from the Selected Fund, and (2) miscellaneous costs, among other factors, per Unit each month.

Furthermore, it is also important for investors to note that the Manager may, in circumstances
where it deems appropriate, elect that a Monthly Distribution is not payable in respect of
Monthly Distribution Type Units for a relevant month, notwithstanding its option to use the
investment principal attributable to the Monthly Distribution Type Units. Circumstances where the
Manager may make such an election, include but are not limited to where it determines in its sole
discretion that application of the Series Trust s investment objectives and policies have
generated a negative performance over the previous month or have underperformed to the extent
that the Manager deems it appropriate to make such an election.

Any Monthly Distribution declared will be paid (net of any taxes payable in respect of such
distribution) on the corresponding distribution date. Distributions will be made to the person in
whose name Monthly Distribution Type Units are registered on the register of Unitholders on the
relevant distribution record day. Such distributions will be rounded naturally to two decimal
places with 0.005 being rounded up.

Distributions paid during the year ended 31 October 2023 amounted to USD6,360,634 (2022:
usb7,364,810).
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2023
(continued)

17. POST STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION EVENTS
Subsequent to 31 October 2023, there were redemptions of USD28,667,120 from the Series Trust and
there were subscriptions of USD2,372,462 into the Series Trust. Also through 26 February 2024,

the Series Trust paid distributions of USD1,993,594.

As of 26 February 2024, there were no other events subsequent to the year end, which require
disclosure in the financial statements.
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2022 12 31
2022 2021
11 70,759,083 10,661,271 49,591,482 7,471,949
12 87,139 13,129 58,583 8,827
9,10 2,753,247,487 414,831,799 2,529,547,436 381,126,912
28,163,250 4,243,357 24,902,740 3,752,096
13 39,897,930 6,011,421 29,028,652 4,373,747

2,892,154,889 435,760,977 2,633,128,893 396,733,530

9,10 24,361 3,670 1,639,606 247,039
2,500,000 376,675 43,420 6,542

19,237,660 2,898,538 271,843 40,959

16 1,657,560 249,745 1,686,841 254,156
23,419,581 3,528,628 3,641,710 548,696

14,18 2,868,735,308 432,232,349 2,629,487,183 396,184,834

2023 4 25
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FX
FX

2022 12 31
2022 2021

28,563,375 4,303,644 23,077,088 3,477,025
1,058,640 159,505 3,844 579
103,658,827 15,618,275 78,737,779 11,863,421
500,737 75,446 (67,187) (10,123)
15 (489,526,641) (73,756,979) 9,140,420 1,377,187
(355,745,062) (53,600,108) 110,891,944 16,708,089
16,17 261,652 39,423 223,006 33,600
16,17 12,801,529 1,928,806 10,947,209 1,649,416
16,17 - - 67,985 10,243
16,17 1,046,606 157,692 892,015 134,400
16,17 745,503 112,325 614,936 92,652
16,17 197,692 29,786 155,843 23,481
16,17 20,422 3,077 24,870 3,747
54,644 8,233 29,802 4,490
3,848 580 1 0
(99,976) (15,063) 99,324 14,965
15,031,920 2,264,859 13,054,991 1,966,995
(370,776,982) (55.,864,968) 97,836,953 14,741,094
19 (122,983,384) (18,529,906)  (100,754,791)  (15,180,724)
(122,983,384) (18,529,906)  (100,754,791)  (15,180,724)
(493,760, 366) (74,394,874) (2,917,838) (439,631)
7 (12,222,193) (1,841,518) (9,018,215) (1,358,774)
(505,982, 559) (76,236,392) (11,936,053)  (1,798,405)
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2022 12 31
2022 2021

2,629,487,183 396,184,834 1,901,141,996 286,445,065

921,694,936 138,871,776 805,639,018 121,385,631

(176,464,252)  (26,587,869) (65,286,629) (9,836,736)

16 - - (71,149) (10,720)
(505,982,559)  (76,236,392) (11,936,053) (1,798,405)

2,868,735,308 432,232,349 2,629,487,183 396,184,834
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2022 12 31

2022 2021

(370,776,982) (55,864,968) 97,836,953 14,741,094
(12,222,193) (1,841,518) (9,018,215) (1,358,774)
(28,556) (4,303) (31,752) (4,784)
(223,700,051) (33,704,887) (670,588,809) (101,037,616)
(10,869,278) (1,637,674) (9,674,537) (1,457,662)
(1,615,245) (243,369) 1,629,693 245,546
18,965,817 2,857,580 (3,577,785) (539,065)
(29,281) (4,412) 553,875 83,452
(600,275, 769) (90,443,550) (592,870,577) (89,327,810)
890,179,334 134,123,320 783,021,819 117,977,897
(3,260,510) (491,261) (5,333,076) (803,535)
(176,464,252) (26,587,869) (65,286,629) (9,836,736)
2,456,580 370,133 (5,009) (755)
_ - (71,149) (10,720)
* (91,467,782) (13,781,451) (78,137,592) (11,772,991)
621,443,370 93,632,873 634,188,364 95,553,161
21,167,601 3,189,322 41,317,787 6,225,351
49,591,482 7,471,949 8,273,695 1,246,598
70,759,083 10,661,271 49,591,482 7,471,949
22,546,196 3,397,035 16,963,093 2,555,829
104,823,191 15,793,710 81,465,616 12,274,424
843,029 127,019 3,844 579
(3,848) (580) [€)) ()
*2022 12 31 31,515,602 2021 22,617,199

19
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2024

468,275,392

70,555,053,313

1,215,458

183,133,057

467,059,934

70,371,920,256

2,725,251

1,949,822

106.69

16,075

90.42

13,624
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2024

1,700,189,889

10,001,849

13 81,942,213

71,631,528,710

1,565,243,914

21 157,456,934,373
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2021 2021 12 31 2022 2022 12
31
22 38 59
131
23 103
2024 29

150.67

2024
UBS
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2022 2021
USD USD
14,396 2,169 1,541 232
14,396 2,169 1,541 232
14,396 2,169 1,541 232
205,000 30,887 210,000 31,641
58 9 4 1
219,454 33,065 211,545 31,873
(112,703) (16,981)  (111,758) (16,839)
106,751 16,084 99,787 15,035
106,751 16,084 99,787 15,035
106,751 16,084 99,787 15,035
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2022 12 31

2022 2021

uSsD uSsD
9 1,984,033 298,934 1,759,688 265,132
10 205,864 31,018 210,863 31,771
2,189,897 329,952 1,970,551 296,903
10 336,526 50,704 223,931 33,740
336,526 50,704 223,931 33,740
11 735,000 110,742 735,000 110,742
1,118,371 168,505 1,011,620 152,421
1,853,371 279,247 1,746,620 263,163
2,189,897 329,952 1,970,551 296,903

2023 15
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2022 12 31
usD usb usD
2022
735,000 110,742 1,011,620 152,421 1,746,620 263,163
106,751 16,084 106,751 16,084
12 31 735,000 110,742 1,118,371 168,505 1,853,371 279,247
2021
735,000 110,742 911,833 137,386 1,646,833 248,128
99,787 15,035 99,787 15,035

12 31 735,000 110,742 1,011,620 152,421 1,746,620 263,163
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2022 12 31
2022 2021

USD USD
106,751 16,084 99,787 15,035
4 (14,396) (2,169) (1,541) (232)
92,355 13,915 98,246 14,803
4,999 753 10,107 1,523
4,999 753 10,107 1,523
112,595 16,965 5,998 904
112,595 16,965 5,998 904
4 14,396 2,169 1,541 232
224,345 33,802 115,892 17,461
224,345 33,802 115,892 17,461
9 1,759,688 265,132 1,643,796 247,671
1,984,033 298,934 1,759,688 265,132
9 1,984,033 298,934 1,759,688 265,132

1,984,033 298,934 1,759,688 265,132
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2022 2021
14,396 1,541
14,396 1,541
2022 2021

205,000 210,000
205,000 210,000
2022 2021

(50) (1)
(6,478) (5,272)
(106,175) (106,485)
(112,703) (111,758)

2039 10 10
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2022

2022 2021

1,984,033 1,759,688

1,984,033 1,759,688
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2022 2021

205,864 210,863

205,864 210,863

2022 2021

336,526 223,931

336,526 223,931
2022 2021

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
205,864 205,864 210,863 210,863
205,864 205,864 210,863 210,863
336,526 336,526 223,931 223,931
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
1,071,526 1,071,526 958,931 958,931
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
205,000 205,000 210,000 210,000
205,000 205,000 210,000 210,000
2022 2021
106,175 106,485
106,175 106,485
2022 12 31
2023 12
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e Supae Masugmement 100 mun) Lindts
Faprohy’ stdwranly for tee prar ended 37 Dwowmber 2005

Statement of Income for the year ended 31 December 2022

uen u::;.:. 022 2021
Intinsiinebei =R T el T

- af wiich lnterast Ihcoma froam nstments &t

amartised cost 14,386 1,541
Total inkerest income 4 14,356 1,541
Serveefeeicome B 905000 210,000
CHhar reveues =] &
Total ravenuas 219,454 211,545
General, adminstraiive and other operating expenses | 6 (12708 {111,768)
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 106,751 99,787
Profit bafore tax 106,751 99,787
Income fax expenss T FIREERINEEN LS R
Profit after tax 106,751 99,787

The accomganjing notes fonm an integral part of thess finandal stalaments.
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Liméed?

Firanoad stideengndy &y s year onded 31 Ciacember 2027

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022

uso Tﬂ‘ 2022 2021
Assels
Cash and due from banks ] 1,884,033 1,759,688
Dither gssets 10 05,564 210,863
Total assels 2,189,897 1,970,551
Liabilities
Other liabfities 10 336,526 223,931
Total liabilities 336,526 223,931
Sharehalders’ equity |
Share capital 1 735,000 735,000
Retained samings S 1118371 1011820
Total shareholders’ aquity 1,853,371 1,746,620
Total liabilities and shareholders' aquity 2,189,897 1,970,551
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of dinectors on 15 June 2003

1

}

} Deector

)

)

Hw:&ﬂﬂ" umi‘ll!d
BT jcoymon}
Mﬂiﬂ‘

The accomparying notes form an integral part of these financial stalements.
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v Sewsme Maragemsnt (Cinaran) Lol
Firgrwlel wlildmars's £ Wop yoar ancked B Corcarobar D000

Staterment of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2022

Share capdal Rt ed Total

UsD camings
2022

Balanceatianvary 735000 1,011,620 1,746,620
Prafit for the yea: i 05751 106751
Balance at 31 Decembar 735,000 1,118,371 1,853,371
2001

Balance at 1January 735,000 911,833 1,646833
Profitfor theyewsr =TT eeTEr T eeer
Balance at 31 December 725,000 1,011,620 1,746,620

The accomeanying notes fom an integral part of thess finandal siatemants.
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Crpe’? Sudrpe Mpsgmonent [Gaman] Laniid
Flomncas' sladearants dor fee pier o 57 Dheoevmbier 20220

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2022

UsSD ‘m 032 2021
Cash llows from operaling activities

Erofit bedone ta bar the peded 106,751 4,787
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash

generated from eperating activities

Hon-cash ems ncluded in net profit before tax

and ather adjusiments:

[Interest income ! A (4,386 (15473
Cash generated from operating activiies before

changes in operating assels and liabilites 92,365 98,248
Het decrease in operaling assels:

Other aseets = - X 1
Net decrease in operating asscls 4,993 10,107
Netincrease In operoting Bebililes:
Oher fabilties 119,508 6,000
Net increase in cperating Babilities: . 112685 5908
Interest income mecaived 4 14,356 1.541
Met cash generated from aparalin! activity 224,345 115,882
Met increase in cash and cosh equivalents 224 348 115,862
Cazh and cash squivalante at the beginning of year 2] 1,758,688 1,643,796
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,984,033 1,759,688
Cezh and due from banks ] 1684,033 1,755,588
Cash ond cash equivalents at the end of yesr 1,984,033 1,759,688

The accomsanying netes torn an intagral pat of these inancial stodemeants,
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Crwe] Sutss Maragemant {Cayman) Linte!
Nolvs & Frcs! sisdomeniy for e paar sraod 31 Deoember 2029

Notes to the financial statements
1. Principal activities

Credit Suisse Maragement (Caymay) Lirted (Ihe “Compam™) is incarpomded in the Caenan sands
with Emited Isbifty, The Company's principal activibes are the crsadion of trusts and the administration
and managerment of assels m bests.  The Company's registered office 5 oo Maples Corporale
Sarvices Lirmied, R0, Box 3058 , Ugland House, Gand Ceapman K1 -1 104, Cayrran [sands,

2. Significant Accounting Policles

(2} Statement of compliance

These fnancil slalemenls heve been prepared in accordance with al sppiceble Infemalional
Financia! Repoding Standards (FRSs"), which coleclim ferm incudes all applicable individual
Infemelional Finenciel Repeding Standards, Indermslionsl Accounling Standarcds (M1ASs7) and
Interpratations msued by Inlemational Accounting Standards Scard ("ASET). A summary of the
sinnificant accounting palices adopted by the Company is sef out below.

{b) Basis of preparation of the financial stalements
T measurement basis used in the prepanation of the financal slabemends is the historcal cost basis,

The preparation of financial statements i conformify with IFRSs requires management 10 make
Judgements, estimetes and assumptions that affect Yhe application of poicles and reported amounts
of assets, labilities, income and expenses. The estirmates and associxied assumctions are based on
historica! experience and varous other factors that are beleved %o be rmasonziblz uwnder the
clrcumstances, the resuls of which tonm the basls of making the judgements about carmying vatues of
assels and habilities thal are ncl readily apparent from olher sources. Aclual resulls may differ from
these estmates.

The astmates and undarhying assumplions ars revewed on &n cngoing basiz, Revisions to acoounting
estimates are recognized in the periad in which the astimate Is revisad K the revision affacts only that
percd, orin ihe percd of the revision and fulure perods  the mwvision afects beth cwrant and future
paricds.

Geing Concemn

On 18 March 2023, Cradt Suisse Group AG and UBS Group AG antersd nio an agreement and
glan of merger (the merger”), which was complated on 12 Jura 2003, From 12 June 2023, the
Company 1= 2 consolicated subsidiany of LUBS Group AG, and as such the future oparations and
financial pedormanrce of the Company may be Impacted as a result of the merger and the inpact Is
yeb to be determined. This matter indicates thal a material unceripinty esdsts thal meay cast significant
dewbt on the Company's bty 1o continue as 2 going concem. The Directers have considersd the
fulure tquidity and cosh fiows of the Company in the coming twelve months from 31 December 2022
{"lhe next twelve months'] and concluded that the Cormpany Is expected o have sufficlent worldng
cagital to mee! s Inancial obligeliona as end when they fal due to conlinue operating the Company
during the nexl twabe months, Accesdingly, the Direclors conaider thal i ts eppropaiate to atil prepare
the 2082 francal stelements on a going concam basis.
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Tredd ot Maagicant [Capraq) Laiid
Froted b2 Financial siwemts B i e ancied 31 Duceriae D050

2. Significant Accounting Policles (continuad)
() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank &nd on hand with banks, and shart-term, highly
licamd irrmestments thet ane readly comertible into known amolrnls of cash and which are subjecl to an
insignificant risk of changes in vedue, having been within thres months of matunity al scquisition.

{d) Farzign currency

The Compary's henctional and presentatlon cumency is Uniled Slates Dollers ("USDY). Forelgn
currency transaciions during the year are translated inte USD at the foreign exchange mates ruling al
the: trensaction dates. Monetary assals and Gablibes denominaled in foreign curencies are franalaled
into LISD al the foreign enchange mtes wing at the end of the reporting period. Exchenge gaing and
losses ane recogsed in the profit or loss.

Man-manetary aseats and labltes that ars measured in terms of historical cost in a forslgn currendcy
are transiated into USE wshyg the fomeign ecchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. MNMor-
manatade assats and BablFfes denominated In forsign currancias that are stated ol fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates nding at the dates the falr value was determined. Foreign
currency differences ansing on retranclation are recogriasd in profil or lass,

(o) Other assets

Other assets are initialy recognised af far value gnd thereafler siated at amorized cost less
Expecied Cracit Loss [ECLT) (refer to Mote o)), emcopt whene the recebabies are interest-free
loans made to related partes without any lixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaderdsd. In such cases, the recelvables are stated of cost less Inpalrment for bed and doubiful
datls.

() Provisions and contingent liabililies

Proviskens are recogrised for labitiss of uncertain liming or amount when the Cempany has a logal
or constructive obligation arlsing as a result of & past event, it is probable that an cutfiow of eccnemic
benefis will ba reguined to seiike the chligabon and a reflable estimate cash be made. Whears Lhe ime
vakse of money is materal, provisiarns ame staied at the presand value of the expenditure axpecied fo
satthe the obigaton.

Wraere it is net probable that an eutflow of aconomic benalits wil ba required, or the amounl cannol
be artmated rediably. the obigation is discinsad as a conbngent Eabiky, unlass the crobabilty of
outilow of aconamic bensfils ks remote. Possible chhgations, whose existence wil only be confirmed
by the cccurence o non-occurmence of ona or mone fture evenls are also disclosed as contngent
liaziiies unless the probabiity of owsflow of economic berefds is remale.

(g} Impairment

Tre carmgng amount of the Company's asceis (s reviewed at the end of each reporting parcd 1o
deferming whether thers is any chjective evidence of impalment, If any such ocbjective evidence
eodists, the assels recowerabls amount ls estimaled at the end of each reporiing parod. An
imgaimment 055 s recegnissd wienever the camyving amount of an asset excesds Fs recoverable
amoury:. Impaimment ksses ane recognised inthe proft or loss.

Under IFRS €, tha impairmant requirements apply primarily 1o (inandal sssets measured at amarised
enst. The impairment requiresrants am based on a forward=ooking expected credit loss maodel by
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2. Significant Accounting Policies {(continued)
(g} Impairment (continued)

ncoporaling reasonable and supportable fomscasts of futere econcmic condifions avalable &) the
reporting data. This requires considerabls judgement over how changes In eccnomic faclos alect
ECLs, which Iz datermined on a probabiify-weighted basis.

(h} Revenue recognition

Provaded that i is probable that the socnomic berefite will Tigw 10 the Company and the revenus and
costs, if appicable, can be messeod reliably, sanice fes income £ recogniced in profit or lass wien
the wesimant managemani sarvice s provided,

(i} Expenses
All gxpensas are recogrissd in prelil and loss on an accnml basls,
(j} Ralated partiss

Fer the purposes of these linancil stalements, s perly is considersd to be related to the Company if:
{a} A person, or & chose merrber of thal person’s family, & relabed to the Comgzany E that person:
i) has contral or join] contred over the Company;
(i} has sgnificant influence gwer the Company; or
il iz a membar of tha key management personnel of the Company or the Company's
paramnt,

{B) A eatily is relaled 1o the Company if any &f the tellowing condions appies:
@ The enlity and the Company ae memberz of tha same group [which means fhat sach
parant, subsdiany and fellow subsidary i reflaled bo the othess).
i} One enlity i an associale o joint venture of ihe other endity (or an zssocate or food
fure of & mambar of & group of which tha olher entity s 2 membar).
(i) Bolh enlilies s joint wventuras of the me hind party,
(i One enlly is & joad vanlure of & thied parly and the other entity is an assodate of the
third party.
) The enlily 8 & poet-embloymant cenafit plan for the berefit of ermplovees of ekher the
Company or an entity related 1o the Company,
0dy  Treenity & controlled or ioinly contrefled by & person identified in (a).
[dl) A parcon dentified in (2105 hes significant influsnce over the ently or i a member of the
kery manzgement pearsonnel of the entity (or of a pasert of the enlity).

Clese members of the family of 2 person are those family members whe may be mpactad o
nflvence, or be influencad by, thal person in {helr dealings with the entity,

(k} Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

The Compary has nel sdopled any new slandards or amendments hadng matesial impact on the
tinarcir positon, result of opemtions or cash fiows in the curent year,
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3. Changes in Accounting Policies

The WEE has issued a number of amendmenls lo (FRSs that are first effective for the cument
accounting period of the Company. The adophion of thess amendmenis had no materal mpact to tha
Comgany's lmandal pesition, sl of operations or cash flows,

The Compary has nat agplisd ary new standard or imerpretation that is not yat effective for the
curment accounting period (Mote 15).

4. Total Interest Income

ush 022 2021
Total interest income

Inerestincome on cashand dos frombacks 18305 1541
Total interest incoma : 14,396 1,541

Al the abose inberest ncome on nstruments are sl amorlised cosl.

5. Service Fee Income

The princigal acthiies of the Company are the creation of trusis and the administralicn and
management of assels in trusts,

Revenue represents swestment management lee income eamed from felow subsidiery a3 Tollows:

UsD 2022 2021
Jotalmervionfainoome ik s

Sendce fee income ) R Y S 5175 v ¢]
Total service fee ncome 205,000 210,000

6. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

usp 2022 2021
Ganeral edministrative and olher cperating wxpenses 4

Ll e S P AL LTy I O ieel .| LR (n
Buwditnr remunaration {5.478) (5279
Dirsclors' remuneraton _—C T (0BIT5) _ (106485)

-T;hlnunlrllHmﬂ?ﬁ}lﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁ.ﬁ:ﬁp‘rﬁlﬁéaﬁ'l::n' ' (112,703} {111,768)

Al of the above expenditures ane payable 1o he Comgany's immaediale halding company and ihe
immeadiats holding company seties such expendiures ¢n behalt of the Company.

7. Taxation
Thets ara no taxes on income o geins in the Cayman |zlands and the Company has mecelved an
underaking from the Govemaor in Coundl of the Cayman slands seameting B from all facal incoms,

prediis and capital taxes untd 10 Octozer 2038, Accordingly, no provisien for income faxes is inchuded
in these finanzial statemants,

L]
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8  Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Spongonad unconsskhdated stuclured entrias

The Company considers fiself the spanser of a structured entity when eBher it nams appears in the
narme of fhe structured entty or In products issuad by A or there is & genaral axpectation from the
marnet that the Company is essociated with the structurcd entity or the Company was involed in tho
design or set up of the structured entity and has & fom of imeshvement with the structured cntity.

The below vnconsolideled struciured enfities sre sponsored by the Company whene a feed annual
t fea of USD 5,000 (2027; USD 5.000) i recemed but no inlanest is he'd by the
Comgany as at 31 Decermber 20022

Ghotal RE(T Triphe Premium Fund (For Cuslifed Insiulions investars

LS D Exity P Cund o mati okttt b O .. oo
IS Senal Cap Equity Premium Fund (Fer Oualied Institutional Investars Orly)

Dawa Emerzing Local Market Bond Fund (For ualified Institvtional Investors Crily)

_L!E_F'_reﬁﬁred E:E_IT Inu;_ﬂ'::e Fund [For mmﬁqlnsl:‘iuﬁoml Invesgtors D_ﬂ}]l

apan Equily Eremrium Fund [For Queliied Insliuional imesiors Oy~ "7 7" 777077
INE/MYAM US REIT Income Fund {For Oualifed institutional lmestors k) |
Dziwa UK High Diidend Equity Fund {For Oualified Institutional investors Gnlir}

Mizsay Japen Equly Aclive Fund (For Ouatlied Instiiional nveslors

AP Australia RET Fund (For Gualified Instiutional investorss Gy~~~ "~~~ " """ "™~

-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Qualified Instilutional Imvestors Only)
Eﬂaﬁa Amadcan High Dhidend Equity Ouatiro Income Furd (For Qualtied Insthutional investors

S Numiches) Bond Bond. -
ke L

Meister's Colectan

EEMO GO oo oo sssosi i e SR S
NGO Shorl Tea income Stiwiegy Fund _ 77717 T I T T T
FINIGO Shorl Temn Stralagy R e B Sl

Gaivia J-REIT Covered Call Fund For ualifed insiuionsl invesiors Oy

Foreign Denominated Man AHL Smart Leverage Strateqy Fund

12
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8  Unconsolidaled Structured Entities (continued)

S8l Pictet Asia Hi- Tach Vanturs Fund

AMP Aystralia Income Bond Fund (Fer Cualified Insttutiong! Investors Only)”
HOLT Euro Equity Promium Fund (For Cuatfied institulional investors Only)®
* The tungs were termrinated during 2052,

Tha Comparny has oot provided francial ar other sussan 10 unzonsebdated stiuchured entiies that it
was nat contraciually requised 1o peovide,

The Compary does ool currenlly heve e indention o podde Tnancal or obber support fo
unconsidated sinactured entilies (hat it & nol contractuslly reguied lo provids.

5. Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash aguivaients comprisa:

ush 2022 2021
Cash and due from banks

Cash and due from banks 1884038 1759683
Total cash and due from banks 1,984,033 1,769,608

10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities

uso 2002 2021
Other agsels

Inderes! and leos recehmbie 25,864 210,853
Total cther assets 205,864 210,863
usbh _ 2022 2021
Cther liabilities

Inlsrest and fees payahble 235,500 208 s
Tetal ether liabilities 336.526 223,931

i3
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2022 2021
MNo. of usp He. of uso
shares shares
Authorised:
Ordinary shares af USD 1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000000 1,000,000

lssued and fully paid up:

Dy shiras

TSB000  Tab000  TI5000  7e5,000

Tha hokisss of erdinary shases am entilad to meaive dhidends as daciared from fime to tme and are
anlitied to one vote par share at general meetings of the Compary. All orcinary shares rank equathy

with resgard o the Company's residual assets,

(b) Capital menagement

Thin Company’s primary eojectes when managing capital am to safeguard the Company’s ability 1o
conlinus as a going concern & that it can continue to provide returns fo sharshoiders, by pricing
sandces commansuatily with the leval of risk and by secudng access 4o finance &t 2 reasoralle
cost. As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company's sounges of additional capitel and
policies Tor distioution of moess capital may alks be affecled by fthe group's cepital management
objectves, The Compary defines “capital’ as ncluding all companents of equity.

The Comperty's capilal structure is regulady reviewad and managed with dus regard fo the capisl
rmarggemenl praclioes of the group o witch the Compary belongs. Adjusimanis arm mada 1o the
capital structure in ight of changes in economic condilions affecing the Company or the group, to
the exlent that thess do not canfict wilk e drectors” fdusiany dubies towards the Compary.

The Company was not subject to extennally imposed capital requinsrrents in the curront period,

12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposura o credil, liquidy, nteres! rate and foreign cumency risks arises in tha normal cowrse of the
Company's businass, Thess risks am managed by the Company’s finandal managament poicies and

practicas described bebow
(&) Crecit sk

The: Company's cradil 4% is pimarily attibutable o amounts due from group companies and cash at
bank, Credit sk s defined ax sk that one party te a financial instrument will Cause a financlal loss to
another party by failing fo dischage an obigation, Management requlady monftiors its risk exposum to
ersure thel ifs credit rsk is kept 10 & minimal feved, The masimurm axposune 10 cradit sk B
represanted by the carmying amaount of each firancial assel in the statement of financial position afier

deducting amy (mpaimment alcwanze.
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12. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)

(b} Ligubaity risk

The Company’s policy i lo regulady monior its liguidly equiremenls o salisfy ils contachual and
reasonably foresesible obifgalions as they fal due,

At 31 Decamber 2020 and 3021, all of 1he Campany's financlal Eabilitios, which inciudes all creditars
and accruals, are on demand or undzted and are expecied 1o be sotfed batween three fo beehes
maonths,

(5] fnterast rate risk

The Company & sxposed to inlerest rata sk only 1o the extent that it sams bank néemst on cash

and deposits. At 31 Decembar 2092 and 2021, a change In Interest rates weuld have no direct
material effact on the carying vakie of the recognised assats or labiftas of the Comeany.

(&} Fovelgn eurrency sk

The Compeany is exposed bo foresgn cumrency rigk pamarily theough certain transactons which gece rise
t payasles that are denomirated n Hang Kang dellars fHKDL

Az the HKD is pegoed to the USD, tre Company considers thel the rsk of movemenis in exchange
rales between USD and HYD to b2 insigniticant.

(&) Fair valvas

The camying armounts of the Company's financial nstruments carvind af cost or amortised cost are nod
materally different fram their fair vaive as at 31 December 2092 and 2021,

13.  Material Related Party Transactions

In gddificon 4o lhe transeclons and badances disclosed skewhers in the firancal slalemenls, the
Company antarsd info the folkwing mateial relsted pary transactions,

(a) Related party balance sheel ransactions

31 Decombar 2022 %1 Decambar 2021
Farent Fallow Tetal Parent Farlow Total
Group Group
UsD Companias Companbes
Assais
Ot sssets - WhA0s A —  Neas | 90,508
Total assets —  M5BE4 205884 — 70863 210,883
Liabilitims and
Equity
Otterfabiftes =~ 336506 = = d=shee wnmaa -
Shane copilel 25,000 - T, 000 5,000 — V5,000
Total labdibes and
sharshalders’
equity 1,071,528 —- 1071526 538,531 —  B5EAI
15
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13.  Matersl Related Party Transactions (continued)

(B) Related party revenues and expenses

51 Docomber 1022 3 Decomber0zi
Parent Fallowr Tekal Parent Fellow Tolal
Group Group
Uso Companios Companies
Ravenuas
Senice fes noome JT... 3000 me0ce - 210000 210,000
Tetal revenues - 205,000 205,000 = 210,000 210,000

(¢} Remuneration of key management personnel

Remuneration of key management persormel (USD) 2022 nn
“Bhor-tam amployes tanatts 108,175 108,458
Total Remuneration of ey management person nel 106,175 105,485

14. Parent and Ultimate Helding Company

At 31 Decombar 2062, the immediale parent of tha Company is Cradit Suisse (Heng Hong) Limiled,
which is incorpovated in Hong Mong and the ubmale conlwoling paty of the Company s Credit
Swisse Group AG, which i incorporaled in Swilsettand. Credd Susse Group AG produces financial
slalements wvailsbls for putlic use,

From 12 June 2003, the ulimate cortroling pary of the Company s UBS Group AG, which s
incarporated In Swittedand upon completian of the merger with Credit Suisse Group AE (fhe
rerges) mendened n Mobe 2(8),

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2022

Cerain sew actountng standards, amendments o sccounting standards and interprelations have
besn published that ars nct mandatory for 31 December 2022 reponting peneds and have not been
aary adopled by {he Comparg Thess shindands, amandments or intarpralations are rot sxpacted to
heve & matedial impact on the enlily in the cumeni or Tuture reporting perods and on foresesable
fuure transactions.

16. Subseguent Events

As sel out in Mole X on 19 March 2028, Credit Suisse Group AG and UBS Group AG antered
Irfa an agreement and plan of menger, winkch was compleded on 12 June 3023, From 12 Jume 2003,
the Compary is a consolidated subsidiary of UBS Sroup AG, and 25 such the fulure cpemations and
finzncial performence of the Company may be impacted as a msult of tre mamger and the mpact &
yot io bo deterrined.

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

The financial slalements were aporoved for issue by the bosnd of directors of the Comegany on 15
June 2023,
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1
1995
(€) Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited London

Branch
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Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Meister"s Collection (the "Series Trust'), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 October 2023, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in net assets attributable to
holder of redeemable participating units and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising material accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Series Trust as at 31 October 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended In
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("' IFRS Accounting
Standards™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (""ISAs™). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the "Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of
our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (*'IESBA
Code™) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust®s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors”® Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series
Trust®s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors” report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors” report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a
going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

26 February 2024
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Independent Auditor®s Report

To the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the““Company””), which are
set out on pages 4 to 16, comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

the statement of income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (““IFRSs”?).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““ISAs””). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (““IESBA Code””), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw your attention to Note 2(b) to the financial statements, which describes the merger on 12
June 2023 (the““merger>”) between Credit Suisse Group AG (the ultimate parent of the Company
before the merger) and UBS Group AG (the ultimate parent of the Company after the merger), which
may have an impact on the Company*s future operations and financial performance and the impact is
yet to be determined. This matter indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

239/240



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor™s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 15 June 2023
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